ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
February 5, 2007
1:31 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Bettye Davis, Chair
Senat or Joe Thomas

Senat or John Cowdery
Senator Kim Elton

Senat or Fred Dyson

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

Overview. Promsing Practices in Autism and Early Intervention
Service

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
No previous action to consider
W TNESS REGQ STER

MI1lie Ryan, Executive Director
Governor’s Council on Disabilities
and Speci al Education
Anchor age, AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented overvi ew

Kathy Allely, Health and Social Services Planner I1I
Governor’s Council on Disabilities
and Speci al Education
Anchor age, AK
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented overvi ew

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
CHAIR BETTYE DAVIS called the Senate Health, Education and
Social Services Standing Commttee neeting to order at 1:31:42

PM Present at the call to order were Senators Thomas, Cowdery,
El ton, Dyson, and Chair Davis.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -1- February 5, 2007



Governor’s council on disabilities and special education

GOVERNOR' S COUNCI L ON DI SABI LI TI ES AND SPECI AL _EDUCATI ON
PROM SI NG PRACTI CES | N AUTI SM AND EARLY | NTERVENTI ON SERVI CE

CHAIR DAVIS announced that the conmttee would be having an
overview from the Governor’s Council on Disabilities and Speci al
Education on its Early Intervention service, presented by Mllie
Ryan, the council’s Executive Director, and Kathy Allely, Health
and Social Services Planner Il for the council.

MLLIE RYAN, Executive Director, Governor’s Counci | on
Disabilities and Special Education, explained that the council
fulfills several roles: advising the state governnent on issues
pertaining to devel opmental disabilities and special education

streamining and increasing the capacity of disability services,
and advocating for <change in policies pertaining to such
services. The board is also a beneficiary of the A aska Menta

Health Trust Authority (AVHTA). Ms. Ryan pointed out that Al aska
is the only state where all of these responsibilities have been
conbined into one council. The council is conprised of 28
nmenbers appointed by the governor, 60 percent of which are
either individuals wth developnental disabilities or famly
menbers of such. The council does not receive funding from the
state, but rather directly from the federal governnent, the
AVHTA, and federal grants.

1: 37: 03 PM

M5. RYAN explained that the council does not provide direct
services. One of the areas in which is nost interested is early
i ntervention, which has been shown to be inportant to inproving
the later quality of life for disabled children and prevent
lasting harm The w ndow of opportunity for effective early
intervention is in the first three years of life. Studies have
shown that people who received early intervention at a young age
were, at 40 years of age, earning nore noney and were |ess
likely to be involved in the crimnal justice system than those
who didn't receive early intervention.

1: 39: 18 PM

SENATOR COWNDERY asked if there was a hereditary factor in such
di sabilities.

1: 39: 45 PM

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 2- February 5, 2007



M5. RYAN replied that early intervention also works with the
parents of qualified children to teach them Il|ife skills.
Children with FAS certainly are the product of a drinking
nother. There are certain tests that can be done to exam ne the
parents’ genetics.

1: 40: 53 PM

KATHY ALLELY added that there are often unknown reasons for
di sabilities.
MS. RYAN said that it is certain that earlier intervention with
the disabled child is nmuch less costly than dealing with later
conseqguences.

She explained that 1-2 percent of infants have a diagnosable

disabling condition at birth, like Down’ s syndrone or cerebra
palsy. In the next few years additional problens can becone
evident. By pre-school, |anguage, |Ilearning, and behaviora

problens manifest. By public school age, 10-12 percent of
children have sone degree of disability. Some of those children
coul d have been diagnosed and treated prior to entering public
school. Available tools could be used nore effectively wth
additional funding. By the tine a disabled child reaches the age
of 40, for every $1 invested in treatnent there was a $17 return
in terns of avoided costs or earned noney and property of the
i ndi vi dual .

1: 44: 36 PM

SENATOR CONDERY asked for an exanple of nedical and non-nedica
costs associated with treating a disabled child.

M5. ALLELY replied that physician and hospital visits were
different fromtherapi es and educati on.

1:46: 21 PM

SENATOR DYSON asked if all of the disabled children who
conprised the 10-12 percent figure quoted earlier by M. Ryan
requi red special accommodation in school.

M5. RYAN replied that in nost cases, additional care was

necessary. Children could be enrolled in special education
cl asses or have an individualized education plan, or they could

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 3- February 5, 2007



just need the teacher or admnistrators to be aware of their
di sability.

1: 47:50 PM

SENATOR DYSON asked for clarification on the nunber of special
education students in the state.

M5. RYAN replied that there are 18,000 such students in the
state, from ages 3-21. Some of these children may be
declassified later on if they are properly accommobdated at an
early age.

1: 48: 40 PM

M5. RYAN continued to explain that in fiscal year 2006, the
council served 1,800 children at an average cost of $5,500
api ece. There are 17 regional grantees that provide services as
well as progranms run through the Statewi de Consultation for
Children with Hearing and Vision D sabilities, an | nfant
Learni ng Program

1:49: 19 PM

SENATOR DYSON asked for clarification on the anount of noney
spent on the 1,800 children served, and if $5,500 was the tota
anount .

1:49:49 PM

M5. RYAN replied that 1,800 children were served at an average
of $5, 500 api ece.

SENATOR DYSON asked if that anpunt included all services or just
t he services provided by the board.

M5. RYAN replied that the latter was correct.

SENATOR DYSON said that he was told that each FAS child cost $1
mllion in treatnent by the age of 18.

1:50: 43 PM
M5. RYAN replied that the $5,500 figure represented only the

early intervention costs, which mght be effective in preventing
such later costs.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -4- February 5, 2007



1: 51: 06 PM

M5. RYAN said that to be eligible for an early intervention
program a child nust have a diagnosed condition leading to
significant delays, or a 50 percent or greater delay in one area
of developnment. Children with a 15-49 percent delay nay receive
services as funds allow. Alaska is nore restrictive than nost
states in ternms of services provided. Services nust also be
provided for children under the age of three if they have a 25
percent delay in at |east two areas of devel opnent.

1:52:48 PM

SENATOR ELTON said that he didn't understand the threshold for
intervention, and asked for an explanation of “delays” and who
makes the determ nations.

M5. RYAN replied that a diagnosis of a condition would generally
be made by a doctor. Cinical opinions could qualify a child, or
a devel opnental checklist.

1: 53: 43 PM

M5. ALLELY added that standardi zed assessnent tools are used to
determne disability in different areas of skill. A 50 percent
del ay, for exanple, would refer to a 12-nonth-old child who was
at a 6-nmonth-old s | evel of devel opnent.

1:54: 31 PM

M5. RYAN said that many children are not identified when the
intervention is nost critical and least costly. In the
Mat anuska- Susitna School District, 109 children were eligible
for preschool special education but were never enrolled. In sone
cases there was insufficient funding, and in others the children
were not recogni zed as eligible until preschool.

1: 55: 32 PM

CHAIR DAVIS asked how the eligible children are supposed to be
i dentified.

M5. RYAN replied that various child-find activities take place,
fromhealth fairs to doctor evaluations and child care prograns.

M5. ALLELY added that child-find activities, including free
basic screening, often take places in busy areas |ike shopping

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 5- February 5, 2007



mal | . However, if the child is not severely del ayed they nay not
be served due to |lack of funds.

1:57: 20 PM

CHAIR DAVIS asked if there is a variety of children whose needs
are not being nmet, and what happens to such children once they
are identified.

1: 57: 39 PM

M5. RYAN replied that these children may be referred to other
prograns in the commnity, but such services my not be
avai |l abl e. The children with less severe disabilities nmay be
t hose who woul d benefit the nost fromearly intervention

1: 58: 42 PM

M5. RYAN said that Infant Learning Program (ILP) grants were
reduced 6 percent in the 2006 fiscal year. An increased nunber
of children have been identified wth autism The Individuals
with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) was recently revised and
now requires screenings and referrals for children with synptons
resulting from pre-natal drug exposure. A three-site pilot
program has resulted in 100 referrals and screenings, 60 of
which required a multi-disciplinary evaluation and 17 of which
met eligibility, and an additional 3 cases were eligible but
woul d only be served on an avail abl e-funds basi s.

2:00: 50 PM
M5. RYAN said that the council is working with the Ofice of

Children’s Services (OCS) on managing the ILP. They are doing
resource mapping of state and federal funds, and are | ooking at

possi ble partnerships with different agencies. A cost study
will be conpleted by June 30'" |ooking at service delivery costs
and other sources of funds. The council wll conpare its

findings with other states” and nodel alternative financing
syst ens.

2:02:11 PM

M5. RYAN said the council is looking at ways to naxinze
Medicaid funds and utilize private insurance to support early
intervention. The council had two recommendations for inproving
early intervention: a $1 nillion funding increment from the
AMHTA, which the trust supported but which was not included in

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 6- February 5, 2007



t he governor’s budget, and a legislative task force to study the
feasibility of billing private health insurance.

2:04:19 PM

CHAIR DAVIS asked for clarification on the recommendation from
t he ANVHTA.

2:04: 46 PM

M5. RYAN replied that the recommendation was for the yearly
budget and that the funds were not provided by the AVHTA

2: 05: 29 PM

SENATOR ELTON asked if federal governnent funds were provided
for mandated child screenings.

2: 06: 03 PM

M5. RYAN replied that there was a small increase in federal
funds but it was insufficient. A partnership with the OCS is
bei ng explored to help fund the screeni ngs and servi ces.

2:07: 25 PM

M5. RYAN said that one inportant topic was autism which sone
people are <calling an epidenc. The council convened a
committee on autism in 2005 which «created a series of
recommendat i ons.

2:08: 05 PM

M5. ALLELY explained that autismis a high-profile disorder. It
is classified as a spectrum disease, ranging frommld to severe
and it affects social skills, conmunication, play, and behavior.
Peer relationships, spoken [|anguage, and gestures are all
af fected or non-existent.

She continued to explain that autistic children are often
preoccupied with certain activities or objects. Autism affects
boys four tines nore often than girls, and while sone my
characterize it as an epidemc, the increased nunbers have mnuch
to do with better and broader diagnosis and a w der definition
of the condition. Undoubtedly there are unidentified factors
that contribute to rising nunbers as well.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -7- February 5, 2007



2:13:30 PM

M5. ALLELY explained that in the 1970s the incidence of autistic
births was 2 to 5 in every 10,000, and now the incidence is 1
per 166.

2:14: 06 PM

SENATOR DYSON asked if the increase in autism occurrence could
be due to inproved diagnosis.

MS. ALLELY replied that she thought so, and that the broadening
of the definition did heighten the nunbers of affected people.

2:15:46 PM

SENATOR DYSON asked how |l ong ago autism was characterized as a
di sorder.

2:16: 17 PM

M5. ALLELY replied that she was unsure when the disorder was
det er m ned.

SENATOR DYSON replied that he thought it would have been in the
| ast 50 or 60 years, and asked if Asperger’s syndrone was a mld
formof autism

M5. ALLELY replied that Asperger’s syndronme was a high-
functioning formof autism

2:17:39 PM

M5. ALLELY said that out of 10,000 births in Alaska, 60 children
coul d be expected to be autistic. Qther autistic children nmay be
receiving special education services under a different |abel.
She said that there have been nmany inprovenents in autism
servi ces. Fifteen years ago a pediatrician was recruited to
help with diagnosis in Alaska, and a parent navigation program
was | aunched to help famlies navigate the system of services.

She added that five years ago a sunmt was held by a group of
parents of children with autism which resulted in a resource
center.

2:22: 00 PM

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 8- February 5, 2007



M5. ALLELY explained how the council convened a conmttee to
come up with suggestions for inproving services. She would be
presenting the top four priorities. The first priority would be
expanding resource and referral services to make the Early
Intervention program well-funded and independent. The program
will receive $200,000 for 2008 and 2009.

2:24:00 PM

SENATOR COADERY asked what | ong-term services AVHTA provi des.
2:24: 17 PM

M5. RYAN replied that if a child is eligible, they may receive
services from the Division of Senior Services, which could
include living in a group hone.

2:25:22 PM

SENATOR COWDERY asked what enpl oynent opportunities there m ght
be for adults or teenagers with autism

2:25:31 PM

M5. RYAN replied that an autistic person mght receive job
trai ni ng and support.

M5. ALLELY added that AMHTA funding is not available for |ong-
term support.

2:26:41 PM

M5. ALLELY explained that the second priority would be doing
uni versal screening for autism in children as young as 16-18
nmont hs, hel ped by a checklist that can be conpl eted by parents.

2:28:53 PM

SENATOR DYSON asked if autism can be sonmewhat cured or sinply
treat ed.

2:29:34 PM
M5. ALLELY replied that autismis always present, but that wth
proper treatnment sone people function w thout support or special

education. Some children’s autism can even becone unnoti ceabl e.
Sonme nedications may aid with rel ated behavi oral issues.

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 9- February 5, 2007



2:32:42 PM

M5. ALLELY said that the third reconmendation would be an
i ncreased capacity for diagnosis. This would include |ab work
cognitive testing, hearing and eye tests, and evaluations of
not or devel opnent .

2:34: 20 PM

M5. RYAN said that the final recomendation would be to change
Medicaid to allow for tinme-limted intensive intervention
services. Such intervention early in the childs life would
allow for major inprovenent over a lifetinme. School districts
are unable to provide such a level of service. A possibility
woul d be a hone and community-based wai ver

2:36:54 PM

M5. RYAN said that evidence-based interventions show that half
of children who receive such treatment go on to function
normal ly after 2-3 years of treatnent. There is an average gain
of 22 1Q points, and one-third of subjects gained 45 |1 Q points.

2:38: 34 PM

SENATOR ELTON asked if such services were easier to inplenment in
an urban rather than rural environnent.

2: 38: 58 PM

MS. ALLELY replied that that was the case, but early screening
could be done effectively in a rural setting.

2:40: 08 PM

CHAI R DAVI S asked which services included in the recommendati ons
were currently being fulfilled.

2:40: 41 PM

M5. ALLELY replied that the Autism Resource Center currently
provides training and information to famlies, and the services
are good if inadequate. Devel opnmental screening is done broadly,
but not specifically for autism

2:42: 27 PM

SENATE HES COW TTEE -10- February 5, 2007



M5. RYAN added that she has been talking to Health and Socia
Services Conm ssioner Karleen Jackson about integrating an
autism screening tool into current services.

2:42: 52 PM

M5. ALLELY said that a clinic was in place in Anchorage for
conprehensi ve assessnent; Alaska currently has few intensive
treat ment nodel s.

M5. RYAN gave an exanple of one such program that used to exist
in Alaska but was discontinued after the professor who conducted
it retired.

2:44: 46 PM

CHAIR DAVIS asked for clarification on the suggestion to amend
the state Medicaid plan.

2:44:58 PM

M5. RYAN replied that there were two options for doing so,
either using a tine-limted waiver program for intensive
training, or |ooking at possible options and flexibility under
the current state Medicaid plan.

2:45: 36 PM

CHAIR DAVI S asked which organization or entity would actually
present the recomendations to the legislature or appropriate
destination to receive proper funding.

2:46: 05 PM

M5. RYAN replied that it would be the Departnent of Health and
Soci al Servi ces.

2:46: 49 PM

M5. ALLELY explained that the average lifetine cost of a person
with autismis $3.2 nmllion, and assuming there are 60 autistic
children born per year, that equals $192 mllion. Three years
of early intervention for those children would cost $10 nmillion
total, but could save the state $1.6 to $2.8 million per person.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -11- February 5, 2007



She said that her council is advocating a $500,000 increase for
screening and diagnosis funding. There is a need for such a
subsidy for the council’s clinic to continue operating.

2:49: 30 PM

CHAI R DAVI S asked for the amount of the subsidy currently being
provi ded by Providence Hospital in Anchorage.

M5. ALLELY replied that the subsidy was between $250,000 and
$350, 000 yearly.

2:49: 47 PM

CHAIR DAVIS said that she didn't see how the budgetary issues
connected to the Senate Health and Social Services conmttee in
particul ar.

2:50: 29 PM

M5. RYAN said that the AVMHTA recommendation was not included in
t he governor’s budget, but that all agreed it was needed.

CHAIR DAVI S pointed out that the budget is not controlled solely
by the governor and thus the recomendation was technically
still alive. She said that she appreciated the presentation and
wi shed she could prom se nore concrete action.

M5. RYAN offered to supply sone packets of information about
studi es done on autism servi ces.

2:51:58 PM

SENATOR DYSON said that the conmttee would be participating in
the Health caucus the following week and invited the presenters
to join the audience at that neeting.

CHAIR DAVIS announced the next week’s neeting regarding the
| ongevity bonus, and, seeing no further business, adjourned the
Senate Health, Education and Social Services Standing Conmmittee
nmeeting at 2:52:53 PM

SENATE HES COW TTEE -12- February 5, 2007



